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Overview

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited was established under Company Act 2063 and Insurance
Act 2049 as a Public Limited Company in July 2017. JyotiLife, “w& sudst s has embarked on a
journey to transform the perception of insurance in Nepal. In the past, insurance was perceived
as a financial instrument which provided ‘death benefit’, a technical term which implies that the
insurance coverage amount is handed over to next to kin in case of death of the policyholder. We,
JyotiLife, are focusing on living benefits such as our Critical lllness Coverage whereby insurance
shall create a financial support system to fight dreadful diseases such as cancer and start a
healthy life all over again and get full benefit of insurance. JyotiLife is a pioneer among Nepali Life
Insurers to introduce Critical lliness Coverage and till date offers the best coverage in the industry.
JyotiLife takes pride in it’s diverse list of promoters. The promoters of the company consists of
individuals from diverse business background including manufacturing, trading and financial sector
and institutions with strong brand value and presence.

The Company has an authorized capital of Rs. 300 Crore. Currently, JyotiLife has a paid up capital
of Rs. 220 Crores where 70% amounting to Rs. 154 Crores was raised from the promoter group and
30% amounting to Rs. 66 Crores via Initial Public Offering (IPO) from general public shareholders.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Promoter
Shareholders

70%

JyotiLife believes in customer excellence and has adopted
technology and innovation in all avenues of it's business. We
believe that this will optimize operational cost, improve efficiency
and embed control mechanisms which shall all ultimately create
a business value which JyotiLife can pass on to it’s policyholders,
shareholders and other stakeholders. JyotiLife have also recently
obtained I1ISO 9001:2005 certification.

Our vision, mission and strategies have been formulated to
create maximum value for all our stakeholders whilst adhering to
regulatory requirements and laws at all times.
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Vision

To set the standard of excellence in the life insurance
industry.

Mission

* To exceed customer expectations by providing innovative products
and services.

* To be an entrusted brand with the highest standard of integrity.

* To be financially robust and maximize value for all stakeholders.

* To be the best employer fostering a highly professional and
meritocratic environment.

* To develop agents into knowledgeable financial advisors.

* To contribute towards the betterment of society.
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N\611(|Mi(-] Amazing Motor Rally

[HE AMAZING
MOTOR RALLY
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JyotiLife Insurance Company Limited title
sponsored 7th Edition of The Amazing
Motor Rally 2020 as a part of CSR, which
was jointly organized by Kathmandu
Group of Hotels (KGH) and Rotary Club
of Bagmati. The Rally was organized to
promote cancer awareness on World
Cancer Day with the motto "I am and |
will create a world without cancer". In the
same program JyotiLife in association
with KGH organized a Health Camp at
Janajaritti High School, Sarangkot and
distributed bags, study materials and
Sports equipment to the students.
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UM {1 Agency Award Night

Recognition and award distribution
activities were held during this event.
Each qualifiers contributing in terms
of First Premium Collection, Agency
recruitment and Number of Policies Sold
were rewarded in presence of the BODs,
Senior Management Team and Brand
Ambassador of the Company.



e (I M -W:-Thd Basic Training

Agent Basic Training were conducted across
all outlets for agent recruitment where in
depth training about company, product, sales
process, ethical sales practice and claims
process were covered.




JyotilLife [glell

Refreshment and celebration event
organized at every branch during Holi.



JyotiLife Operation gl

Operations Training was conducted for Operation
in Charge of Branches to discuss about company
policy, guidelines and regulatory requirements.



N\e1{1M1{:]1 Agency Motivation Training

Refreshment and motivation training
conducted for agency team.




eI M R [a Recognition Program

Agency motivation and recognition to remarkable
contributors from agency team.



N\ 11{|Hi(-] Agency Refreshment Training
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Agency Refreshment Training to motivate and share
sales techniques to Agency team members.



W RICRLGE L LY Awareness Program

Efforts towards life insurance education and awareness
among general public.
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Leadership development and team building workshop
organized for most valuable agency team leaders and
contributors.



TN CRUIT I TS Celebration Event

Celebration and distribution of motivational schemes
and merchandise.



Financial Highlights
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Investment Mix

FY 2074/75

FY 2075/76

FY 2076/77

M Long Term Investment

Fiscal Year 2076/77 Investment Mix

[ FD of Commercial Banks Shares
I FD of Development Bank [ Debentures
[ FD of Finance Companies [ Other Deposits

¥O | FRNfd AMSW afie gedce 2096/00

M Short Term Investment

Fiscal Year
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Life Fund
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in Rs. Crore
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Solvency Ratio
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Net Worth

250
210
200 186
167
150
100
50
0 L
FY 2074/75 FY 2075/76 FY 2076/77
Fiscal Year

Net Profit (excl. deferred tax)
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Suvod Associates

Chartered Accountants
A5 ES Ganeibrraig
Sharkfurmil
M Baneshwor
Hathmareiy 4600

Mgl PO B 1OTGD
T THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED T AT

Far  «§77:1-52435 10

Web  waw trepdassocianes. chmnp

Ernadl infodwusyesdassnc bybes comnp
Dpinitn ieelisint ile siipahoa e
‘W have audited the accomparnying Financial Statements of kyoti Life Insurance Company Limited which
comprises the Statement of Financial Pesition as at Ashad 31, 2077, Satement of Profit or Loss & Chher
Compeehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equilty & Statement af Cash Flows for thi yirar ended
Ashad 31, 2077, and Notes to Financial Statement including Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies.

In aur apinion and to the best of our information and according 10 the explanations given 1o us, the
aforesakd Financial Statements gve a true and fair view in conformity with Mepgal Financial Repasting
Standards [NFRSs), of the state of affairs of Fyoti Life Insurance Company Limited as at Ashad 31, 2007,
and it% profit, cash flows far the year endad an that date,

Basis of Opinion

Wi comlusbed our awdit of the Tinancial statements in accordance wilh the Nepal Standerd on Awditing
|NSAs] & applicabie Bave, Qur responsibllities under those Standands are further described i the Auditor's
respansibilivy foe the audin of the Finandial S1a0ements $ec1ion of our fepor,

‘We are independant of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the nstaute of
Chartered Accountants of Mepal (PEAN), and we kave fulfilled ger ethical responsibilities in accordance
wilh these requirements.

W boebeve thatl the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficsent and appropriste o provide o basis of o
audit opinion an financial statements,

Other Infermation

Management is responsible for Other Information. Such information constitutes the information included
on the Anrgal Regort but does not include the Financial Statements and our Auditor's Regort thoreon,
The Annual Repor s expected 19 be made availabde to us alter the date al Auditar's Report.

Our Qpinlan an the Financlal Statements does not caver the other information and we de not cxpross any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the Ninoncial Stiements, our fespontibility i€ 10 read ather infarmation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matertally inconsistent with the Fanancial
Satements or our knowledpe obtained in audit or othersite appears 12 be materially misstated. (f based
on the work we have performed, we conchide that there is material misstatement of the orher
information, we are reguired to repost the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

An independiend member of LY interational
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Chartered Accounianis

UH Suvod Associates

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

tanagement is responsible for preparatéon and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Mandards (NFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determings s necessary 1o enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whother due 1o fraud or efror,

in preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as
i gading concern, dischesing. as applicabée, mattess related 10 going concemm and wsing tha going condern
basis of accounting unless the management sither intends 10 hguidate or cease operations, or has no
realistic alvernative but to do so.

Those charged with povernance are respansible far everseelng the Comparmy’s Financial Reporting
Procass,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Awdit of the Finandlal Statements

Qur phjectves are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statemenis as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and W issue an Auditor’s Repord that
includes our opimion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance bul is not a guasrantes that an
aucht conducted in accordance with NS&s wall always detect material misslatement whien il exisls.
Missiatements can arise from fraud of edrad and are consedfored materal i, mdividually of 0 the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the
basts of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with MSAs, we exercise professional judgerment and maintain
prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

gl identefy and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud ar error, desgn and perfarm audit procedures responsible Lo those rigks, and obtain audi evidence
that is suilscient and approgriate (o provide a basis for our opanion. The risk PR detecting o malersal
missislement resulting from fraud is higher than for ome resulting frewm Errar, as fraud Ty il
collusion, lorgery, ntentional omissions, misrepresentation, of the override of internal contrals ®

“ii] Obtain an understanding of Internal Control relevant to sudit in order to design sedit proceduses
that are appropriate in the circemstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
eltectivenass of Company™s Internal Contral™

il Ewaluate the sppropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
cutimates and related disclosures made by the management.”

i) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going conoern basis of accounting
and, based on the avdit evidence ebiained, whether a material uncertainty exdsts related 1o events or
eanditions that may cast significant doalit on ks ablity to continue as a gelng concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we ane reguired to draw attention in our Aweditor's Report 1o the relatod
disclasures in the Financial Statements af, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinian

An independiend member of L interational
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U Suvod Associates

Chartered Accopntants

Qur conclusions are based on the avdit evidence obtaased up 18 the date of our Audit Repart, However,
Futuie gvenls or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concenn.

Wl Evaluate the overall presentation, structune, and content of the financial statements, mdlwling
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underdying transactions and events
in & manner that achleves fair presentation.”

Wee communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planncd
scope and timing of the audit and signalicant audit findings, meluding any significant deficiencies in mtemal
wontral that we identilfy during ouwr audit.

We also communstate with those charged with governance that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othoer matters
that may reasonably be thought Lo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related salepuards

Report on the Other Legal & Regulatory Reguirements

On the basis of our cxamination and explanations given to us as per Companies Act, we would like o
report that:

{i} We have oblained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
bobed, wene necessary for the purpose of our awdit.

{ilj) Company has kept proper baoks of accounts as required by law, so far as it appears from the
cxansination of those books of aocount s,

{uij Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Staternent of Cash Flows have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement wilh the books of account of the
Company.

(k) During our examination ol the books af account of the Company, wie have not come across Lse cases
whare the Board of Dhrectors of any memiser of there or anry repréesentative ar any office holdor or amy
employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused los4 or damage Lo the
Company, and

(w] We lhave nel comde across any fraedlent activities in the books of accounts.

O the basis of gur examination and explanations given 1o us as per directives issued by Insurance Board
to insurer conducting Life insurance Business, we would like 1o repon that:

i) Company's Life inswrance Fund and other special reserves are maintained as required.

(] As per Information provided to ws no ather business than approved Life nturance busines was
conducted by Company.

(i} To the Best of information provided fo s, the company is able to mest its long term habilities

An independiend member of L interational
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UH Suvod Associates

LChartered AcCountants

Other Matters

The Financial Statements of IYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended Ashad 31, 2076
were audited by Subhash & Co, who expressed an unmodified epinion on those statements an the Audil
Heport.

Therefore, as a part of our audit of the Finandial Statements foe the year ended Ashad 31, 2077 we would
like 1o stote that we were nol engaged to audit, reviess, or apply any procedures 1o the Fingncl
Staterments for the year ended Ashad 31, 2006

Accordingly, we do not express an apinion of any ather farm of assurance on Uhe Financial Statements for
the wear ended Ashad 31, 2076,

Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ca. Bishamyer kumar Karn
Fartner

Flace: KEathmandu
Crate: 2078-07-14

LDIN NO: 211103CA00B5uKI 1S
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As At Ashad 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020)

Fig. in NPR
Notes Current Year  Previous Year
Assets
Intangible Assets 4,430,172 3,766,091
Property, Plant and Equipment 69,285,319 58,419,509
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 203,191,551 82,606,547

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

srralnise® Nooas

3,335,528,871

2,371,068,000

Investments

Loans 268,130,720 19,203,882
Reinsurance Assets 13,765,720 1,735,258
Current Tax Assets (Net) 115,784,040 71,299,066
Insurance Receivables - 3,375,956
Other Assets 23,218,742 13,777,792
Other Financial Assets 11,885,295 4,905,299
Cash and Cash Equivalents 318,289,771 118,234,355

Total Assets

4,363,510,201

2,748,391,756

Equity & Liabilities
Equity

Share Capital 17 (a) 1,540,000,000 1,540,000,000
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17 (c) - -
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 55,850,760 32,013,768
Retained Earnings 17 (e) 293,667,695 197,838,007
Other Equity 17 (f) 203,249,312 82,664,308
Total Equity 2,092,767,767  1,852,516,082
Liabilities

Provisions 18 8,145,110 10,795,791
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 1,920,781,156 715,470,698
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payables 20 58,043,959 17,932,493
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Borrowings 22 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 219,573,757 132,640,827
Other Liabilities 24 64,198,452 19,035,865
Total Liabilities 2,270,742,434 895,875,674

Total Equity and Liabilities

4,363,510,201

2,748,391,756

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Akash Golcha
Director

Prakash Bikram Khatri
Chief Executive Officer

Nanda Kishore Sharma
Chairman

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf
Head of Finance

CA Bishamver Kr. Karn
Partner
Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan Jayanta Kumar Agrawal
Director Director

Deepak Kumar Agrawal
Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date :
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077
(For The Year Ended July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR

Notes Current Year Previous Year

Income:

Gross Earned Premiums 25 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049
Premiums Ceded 26 (77,976,276) (31,395,223)
Net Earned Premiums 27 1,811,388,386 986,192,826
Commission Income 28 - -
Investment Income 29 311,198,428 232,263,991
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 6,024,997 583,436
Total Income 2,128,611,811 1,219,040,253
Expenses:

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 20,444,647 5,768,707
Claims Ceded 34 (10,606,584) (4,203,199)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35 1,205,310,458 562,351,303
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35 (12,030,461) (1,735,258)
Net Benefits and Claims Paid 1,203,118,059 562,181,553
Commission Expenses 36 299,499,547 200,950,344
Service Fees 37 18,113,884 9,861,928
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 186,983,506 132,995,015
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 12,646,891 9,286,549
Impairment Losses 40 2,943,806 1,149,500
Other Expenses 41 288,515,112 198,670,845
Finance Cost 42 649,582 3,416,728
Total Expenses 2,012,470,388 1,118,512,462
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net

Profits of Associates Accounted for Using Equity 116,141,423 100,527,791
Method and Tax

Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity 9 - -
Method

Profit Before Tax 116,141,423 100,527,791
Income Tax Expense 43 (120,585,004) (81,503,416)
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 236,726,427 182,031,207
Earning Per Share 50

Basic EPS 15 12
Diluted EPS 15 12

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma Akash Golcha
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director
Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Deepak Kumar Agrawal CA Bishamver Kr. Karn
Director Director Director Partner

Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date :
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077
(For The Year Ended July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 236,726,427 182,031,207

Other Comprehensive Income - -

a) ltems that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments - -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value - -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted - -
for using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -

Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

b) ltems that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments - -
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets - -
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted - -
for using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax - -

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 236,726,427 182,031,207

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma Akash Golcha
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director
Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Deepak Kumar Agrawal CA Bishamver Kr. Karn
Director Director Director Partner

Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date :
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077
(For The Year Ended July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:
Cash Received
Gross Premium Received 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049
Commission Received - -
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 10,606,584 4,203,199
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
Others : - -
Other Income 6,024,997 572,663
Cash Paid
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (20,444,647) (5,768,707)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (34,488,854) (31,395,223)
Commission Paid (299,499,547) (200,950,344)
Service Fees Paid (9,396,119) (9,861,928)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (189,634,186) (125,668,241)
Other Expenses Paid (161,612,103) (100,356,382)

Others (to be specified)
Income Tax Paid

(9,440,950) (9,039,147)
(44,484.974) (34,674,454)

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

1,136,994,863 504,649,485

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits

Maturity of Deposits

Proceeds from Finance Lease

Loans Paid

Proceeds from Loans

Interest Income Received

Dividend Received

Others (Financial Assets)

[§ ,106,2702 (2,889,9752
(23,070,51 2; (17,189,193é
(46,357,1 77; (37,700,000;

(471 ,922,000; (68,468,000;
(449,600,000; (534,900,000%

(248,452,338) (18,083,567)
311,198,428 232,274,763

(6,979,996) 2,862,565

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

(936,289,865) (444,093,408)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital
Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others (to be Specified)

(649,582) (3,416,728)

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

(649,582) (3,416,728)

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]

200,055,416 57,139,349

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

118,234,355 61,095,005

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

318,289,770 118,234,355

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

Cheques In Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)
Balance With Banks

110,916,677 -
125,566,408 -

81,806,686 118,234,355

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer
Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan Jayanta Kumar Agrawal
Director Director

As per our report of even date attached

Nanda Kishore Sharma
Chairman

Deepak Kumar Agrawal
Director

Akash Golcha
Director

CA Bishamver Kr. Karn
Partner
Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date :

e gfvdcer 00800 INTd allsw | L9



Particulars

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077
(For The Year Ended July 15, 2020)

Current Year

Fig. in NPR

Previous Year

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss

Appropriations:

i) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserves
ii) Transfer to Capital Reserves

i) Transfer to Regulatory Reserves
iv) Transfer to Fair Value Reserves
v) Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserves

201,363,264
236,726,427

(23,836,992)

(120,585,004)

115,999,368
182,031,207

(18,689,153)

(81,503,416)

vi) Others (to be Specified) - -
Less:

i) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange - -
Currency

ii) Unrealised Income on unwinding of Financial Assets - -
ii) Actuarial Reserve - -
iv) Goodwill Recognised - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Total Distributable Profits 293,667,695 197,838,007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma Akash Golcha
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf
Head of Finance

Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Deepak Kumar Agrawal CA Bishamver Kr. Karn
Director Director Director Partner
Suvod Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date :
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Note to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020)

1.General Information
JyotiLife Insurance Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 07/05/2017 and
operated as life insurance company after obtaining license on 04/07/2017 under the Insurance Act 2049.
The registered office of the Company is located at Pokhara-09, Kaski. The Company's shares are listed on
20/04/2021 .
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 31/10/2021 .

2.Basis of Preparation
(a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of The Nepal Chartered
Accountants Act, 1997. These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting
Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS,
includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

(b) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets &
Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:
i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits
iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or

2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the

significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability."

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.

(d) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

(e) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.
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(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting standards issued and effective
Accounting standards issued and non-effective

(h) Carve-outs

3.Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
i) Recognition

General Policy: Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than
oneyearandthe costcanbe measuredreliably. Company does nothave freeholdland asonreportingdate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

ii) Revaluation
General Policy: After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured
reliably, have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent umulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as
at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to
the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the assetand the netamountis restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Alternatively, accumulated depreciation can be increased proportionately as allowed by NAS 16

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based
on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

Company however does not own any land and buildings as on reporting date, so has not revalued its
assets.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold
Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method (SLM)
based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date
and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories (In yesaerfsl;l flc;lrfeéLM
Land Not Applicable
Buildings 20
Leasehold Assets 15
Leasehold Assets (Branch) 10
Furniture & Fixtures (Heavy) 10
Furniture & Fixtures (Light) 5
Computers and IT Equipments 5
Office Equipment (Heavy) 5
Office Equipment (Light) 2
Vehicles (2-Wheeler) 7
Vehicles (4-Wheeler) 10
Other Assets 5

Company however does not have any building as on reporting date.

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss. However, Company has not sold any assets in the reporting period.

v) Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would
be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. However, Company has no capital assets in the
reporting period.

(b) Intangible Assets
i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. However, Company has not internally generated any assets.
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall
be regardedashavinganindefinite usefullife when, based onananalysis of all of the relevantfactors, there
isnoforeseeable limitto the period over whichthe assetis expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit or loss on straight line method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets, from the date that it is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10

Licenses License Period

Others (to be Specified) Not Any

Company has however not acquired any license till end of reporting period.

ili) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. However, Company has not derecognised any intangible asset till end of
reporting period.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties
Cost Model:
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classified as investment
propety.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at
the date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.
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Fair Value Model:

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated atfairvalue, which reflects market conditions atthe reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in
the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect.
The fair value of investment property is determined by an external, independent property valuer, having
appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued.Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed
of, or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at
the date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

However, Company has no investment properties at end of reporting period.

(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, Cheques in Hand, Bank Balances and short term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. There are however no short term deposits at the end
of reporting period.

(e) Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial
Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of
Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurementa) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial
Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using
effective interest rate method.
(b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the
Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inter-
est on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes
are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

(c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. These
financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In
such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized.
Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to
the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.
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iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Expected Credit Loss for Impairment of Financial Assets is applicable after implementation of NFRS 9
In accordance with NFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL)
Model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
The 12-months Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from those default
events on the Financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or
Full Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the Financial Instrument)

For other assets, the Company uses 12 months Expected Credit Losses to provide for impairment
loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk
Full Lifetime ECL is used.

f) Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its
Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.
All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial
Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the
amount which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer's share
of insurance contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to
it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that
the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces
the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they
do not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(j) Reserves and Funds
i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than
share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed
for distribution subject to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement.

ii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is
10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iii) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s
directive.

iv) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Insurance Board.

v) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vi) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

vii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments
& intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

viii) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be
specified)

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities
i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.
Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period of
the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with
related claims handling costs.
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iii) Unapportioned surplus
Unapportioned surplus where the amount are yet to be allocated or distributed to either policyholders
or shareholders by the end of the financial period, and held within the insurance contract liabilities.

Liability adequacy
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over
unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant life insurance techni-
cal provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate,
the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

(I) Employee Benefits
i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan
The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution
are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past
service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this cal-
culation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The
Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.
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(m) Revenue Recognition
i) Gross Premium
Gross premiums are recognised as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably
measured. First premium is recognised from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due
premiums are accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

ii) Unearned Premium Reserves
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rata basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

iii) Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted
Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because
this is consistent with how the business is managed.

iv) Commission Income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

v) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated
by using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective
yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

vi) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

(n) Benefit, Claims and Expenses
i) Gross Benefits and Claims
Benefits and claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlements of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or
the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims
payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency
covered.

ii) Reinsurance Claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according
to the terms of the relevant contracts.
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(o) Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable ifthe insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transferfinancial risk.
The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Endowment- This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in
event of his early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate
premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan is apt for people of all ages and
social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to their
demise.

ii) Anticipated- This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during
the term of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet
specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata bandha, Academic Graduations
etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term, the
death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which
have already been paid. It is also with profit plan.

iii) Endowment Cum Whole Life- This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole
Life with profit plan. It provides financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life
assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured
in case of his survival.

iv) Whole Life- Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of
the contract holder for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder, the
insurance payout is made to the contract’s beneficiaries. These policies also include a savings
component, which accumulates a cash value. This cash value is one of the key elements of whole
life insurance.

v) Foreigh Employment Term- The main objective of foreign employement term is providing
insurance for financial assistance if there is death or elimination of any insured due to work or
staying abroad.

vi) Other Term- Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees
payment of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder
can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to
terminate.

vii) Special Term- Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added
benefits.

viii) Others to be Specified- Life insurance policies other than above mentioned products are
classified as others.

(p) Borrowing Costs
Borrowingcostsdirectlyattributabletotheacquisition,constructionorproductionofqualifyingassets,which
areassetsthatnecessarilytakeasubstantialperiodoftimetogetreadyfortheirintendeduseorsale,areadded
tothe costofthoseassets, untilsuchtime asthe assetsare substantially readyfortheirintendeduse orsale.
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.
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(r) Leases
Finance Leases
Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower
of the Fair Value of the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of
Minimum Lease Payments. Lease Payments are apportioned between the Finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The Finance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease
Term at a constant periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Operating Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are charged to Statement of
Profit & Loss on a Straight Line Basis.

(s) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets &
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred
Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of
the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

(t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.
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(ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms
of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(u) Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(v) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income

& Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are
considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077
(For The Year Ended July 15, 2020)

4. Intangible Assets Fig. in NPR
Particulars Software License oég(:;sif(iz;a e Total
Gross carrying amount - - -

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 3,976,696 - 3,976,696
Additions - -

Acquisition 1,106,270 - 1,106,270
Internal Development - - -
Business Combination (to be Specified) - - -
Disposals - - -
Revaluation - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 5,082,966 - 5,082,966
Accumulated amortization and impairment - - -

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 210,605 - 210,605
Additions 442189 - 442189
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 652,794 - 652,794
Net Carrying Amount - - -

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 3,766,091 - 3,766,091
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 4,430,172 - 4,430,172
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment Fig. in NPR
Particulars Land Buildings Iml;aerzizr:elgts Fu-rr;ture CO;:IZl.lIErers qu:;:::ms Vehicles l-\ost:eet; Total
Fixtures Equipments

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - 24,196,566 18,385,604 13,941,547 13,275,231 320,400 1,212,814 71,332,162
Additions - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition - - 5,547,528 6,201,981 3,446,855 1,958,429 5,309,000 606,719 23,070,512
Capitalisation - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - - - - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - 29,744,093 24,587,585 17,388,402 15,233,660 5,629,400 1,819,533 94,402,673
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - - - - - -

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - 2,362,392 3,027,742 3,295,289 3,914,258 64,767 248,204 12,912,652
Depreciation - - 2,213,368 3,101,035 3,208,931 3,313,788 54,499 313,081 12,204,702
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - - - - - -

Impairment losses - - - - - - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - - - - - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - 4,575,760 6,128,777 6,504,219 7,228,047 119,266 561,285 25,117,354
Capital Work-In-Progress - - - - - - - -

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - - - - - - - -
Additions - - - - - - - - R
Capitalisation - - - - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Impairment losses - - - - - - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - - - - - - - -

Net Carrying Amount - - - - - - - - -

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - 21,834,174 15,357,862 10,646,258 9,360,973 255,633 964,610 58,419,509
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - 25,168,333 18,458,808 10,884,183 8,005,613 5,510,134 1,258,248 69,285,319
Right-of-Use Assets (after Implemenation of NFRS 16) or Finance Lease assets held by the Company, out of above Property, Plant and Equipment:

Gross carrying amount - - - - - - - -
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - - - - - - - -
Additions - - - - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - - - - - -
Transfer/Adjustment - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - -

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - - - - - - - - -

Disposals/ Write-offs - - - - - - - - -
Impairment losses - - - - - - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - - - - - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - - - - - - - -

Net Carrying Amount
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - - - - - - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - - - - - - - -
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6. Investment Properties

Particulars

Land

Fig. in NPR

Buildings Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Additions
Disposals
Transfer/adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Depreciation
Disposals
Impairment losses
Impairment reversal
Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Capital Work-In-Progress

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Additions
Capitalization
Disposals
Impairment losses
Impairment reversal

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Net Carrying Amount

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generate rental income

Profit from investment properties before depreciation

Depreciation

Profit from investment properties

(ii) Contractual obligations: Refer note no. 54 For disclosure of contractual obligations relating to investment

properties.

i) ngg&seﬁ whether there are any restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or proceeds of

(iv) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars

Current Year  Previous Year

Land
Building

Total

Estimation of Fair Value

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is
current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company

consider information from a variety of sources including:
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i) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those differences.
i) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
i) capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of market evidence.

7. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets (29,955) (19,860)
Property, Plant and Equipment (1,516,965) (1,309,033)
Financial Assets at FVTPL 3,994,390 3,500,952
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 1,969,260 1,255,039
Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity) 67,018 1,443,909
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - -
Tax losses 198,707,804 77,735,541
Other (to be Specified) - -
Total 203,191,551 82,606,547

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 82,606,547 1,103,131
Charged/(Credited) to Profit or Loss 120,585,004 81,503,416
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 203,191,551 82,606,547

8. Investments in Subsidiaries
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

Particulars
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof................ Ltd.
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof................ Ltd.

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

Particulars
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof................ Ltd.
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof................ Ltd.




Information Relating to Subsidiaries

Percentage of Ownership

Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
........... Shares of Rs............. each of . Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs............. each of . Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs............. each of . Ltd. - -
Information Relating to Subsidiaries
Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total _ -
Investment in Quoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars cost FAIr (0':{ c (02
0s quity Cost quity
Value  \1ethod Value  \1ethod
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof............. Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof.............. Ltd. - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars i (or) i (or)
Cost v';:::; Equity Cost V:ﬁ::a Equity
Method Method
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof............. Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof............. Ltd. - - - - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - -

Total
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Information Relating to Associates

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Name - -
Place of Business - -
Accounting Method - -
% of Ownership - -

Current Assets - -
Non-Current Assets - -
Current Liabilities - -
Non-Current Liabilities - -

Income - -
Net Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income - -

Company's share of profits i} )

Net Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Income Tax Expenses - -
Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations - -
Post tax profit or Loss form Discontinued Operations - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Comprehensive Income - -
Company's share of profits - -
Net Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
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10. Investments

Particulars Current Year PrtYa;l;us
Investments measured at Amortised Cost } :

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -

ii) Investment in Debentures 540,390,000 68,468,000
i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal - -
Government)

iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions 2,079,000,000 1,652,900,000
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks 50,000,000 50,000,000
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 378,000,000 354,500,000
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions 170,000,000 170,000,000
viii) Others (to be specified) - -

Less: Impairment Losses (3,418,306) -

Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) - -

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 76,000,000 75,200,000
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds - -

iv) Investment in Debentures - -

v) Others (to be Specified) - -

Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 45,557,177 -
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - -
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds - -
iv) Others (to be Specified) - -

Total 3,335,528,871 2,371,068,000

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Current Previous

Particulars Year Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Investment in Debentures - -

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal - -
Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions - -
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - -
Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions - -
Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions - -
Others (Provision for Loss on Quoted Share measured at FVTOCI) (3,418,306) -

Total (3,418,306) -
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b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Previous

Particulars Current Year
Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 45,557,177 -
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - -
Investment in Mutual Funds - -
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Investment in Debentures - -
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 201,500,000 202,400,000
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - -
Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions 27,500,000 15,000,000

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions - -

Others (to be Specified)

Total

274,557,177

217,400,000

c) The Company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 100 crore to Insurance Board.

11. Loans
Particulars Current Year Previous
Year
Loans at Amortised Cost
Loan to Associates - -
Loan to Employees 26,629,343 4,407,935
Loan to Agents 24,718,704 12,932,215
Loan to Policyholders 217,457,673 3,018,232
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses (675,000) (1,149,500)
Total 268,130,720 19,203,882
a) Expected repayment within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous
Year
Loan to Associates - -
Loan to Employees 1,297,772 -
Loan to Agents 8,284,198 -
Loan to Policyholders - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 9,581,971 -
12. Reinsurance Assets
. Previous
Particulars Current Year Year
Reinsurance Assets on:
Policy liabilities and provisions - -
Provision for unearned premiums - -
Premium deficiency reserve - -
Outstanding Claim reserve 13,765,720 1,735,258
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 13,765,720 1,735,258
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13. Insurance Receivables

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers - -
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - 3,375,956
Other (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total - 3,375,956

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers - -
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - 3,375,956
Other (to be Specified) - -

Total - 3,375,956

14. Other Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses 4,686,586 2,619,295
Claim Advances - -
Advances to Suppliers 1,770,038 4,373,437
Staff Advances 1,345,412 446,094
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks 4,051,030 -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses 9,815,618 6,338,966

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - -
Finance Lease Receivables -
Others 1,550,058 -

Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 23,218,742 13,777,792

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 4,686,586 2,619,295
Claim Advances - -
Advances to Suppliers 1,770,038 4,373,437
Staff Advances 1,345,412 446,094
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks 4,051,030 -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses 9,815,618 6,338,966

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - -
Finance Lease Receivables -

Others 1,550,058

Total 23,218,742 13,777,792
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15. Other Financial Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits 2,059,690 2,059,690
Accrued Interest 1,509,575 2,594,574
Interest Receivable from Policyholders 7,528,478 36,722
Other Receivables 681,102 107,862
Other Deposits 106,450 106,450
Sundry Debtors - -
Other (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 11,885,295 4,905,299

a) Expected maturities within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accrued Interest

Interest Receivable from Policyholders
Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Other (to be Specified)

1,509,575

128,047

2,594,574

107,862

Total

1,637,623

2,702,437

16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash in Hand 110,916,677 -
Cheques in Hand 125,566,408 -
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 61,636,433 103,707,532
ii) Balance with Infrastructure Banks - -
ii) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 16,684,227 13,586,553
iv) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 3,486,027 940,270
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Deposits with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 318,289,771 118,234,355

17. (a) Share Capital
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions during the year
i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Share Issue

1,540,000,000

1,540,000,000

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

1,540,000,000

1,540,000,000

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Total

1,540,000,000

1,540,000,000
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(i) Ordinary Shares
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

30,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital:

22,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

15,400,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

3,000,000,000
2,200,000,000

1,540,000,000

3,000,000,000
2,200,000,000

1,540,000,000

Total

1,540,000,000

1,540,000,000

(ii) Preference Share Capital
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
.......Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

Total

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters

Government of Nepal

Nepali Organized Institutions
Nepali Citizens

Foreigners

Others (to be Specified)

2,850,000
12,550,000

2,850,000
12,550,000

18.51
81.49

18.51
81.49

Total (A)

15,400,000

15,400,000

100.00

100.00

Other than Promoters

General Public
Others (to be Specified)

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

15,400,000

15,400,000

100.00

100.00
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Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

. Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars - .
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Mahesh Kumar Jaju 180,000 180,000 117 1.17
Suresh Kumar Raathi 180,000 180,000 117 1.17
Chandra Tandon 200,000 200,000 1.30 1.30
Diwakar Golcha - 300,000 - 1.95
Bidhya Devi Agrawal 200,000 200,000 1.30 1.30
Call Mobility Pvt. Ltd. 200,000 200,000 1.30 1.30
Satish Kumar Morey 270,000 270,000 1.75 1.75
G.O. Automobiles Pvt. Ltd. 300,000 300,000 1.95 1.95
Akash Golcha 360,000 360,000 2.34 2.34
Sanjeev Sarraf 400,000 400,000 2.60 2.60
Venkatesh Mundra 400,000 400,000 2.60 2.60
Deepak Kumar Mundra 400,000 400,000 2.60 2.60
Nanda Kishore Sharma 415,000 415,000 2.69 2.69
Gaurab Sharada 460,000 460,000 2.99 2.99
Aditi Chokhani 483,000 483,000 3.14 3.14
Citi Investment Fund Pvt. Ltd 600,000 600,000 3.90 3.90
Sirish Kumar Murarka 700,000 700,000 4.55 4.55
Bodh Prasad Tripathi 750,000 750,000 4.87 4.87
NIC Asia Bank Limited 1,500,000 1,500,000 9.74 9.74
Nitesh Agrawal 2,800,000 2,800,000 18.18 18.18
Usha Agrawal 2,800,000 2,800,000 18.18 18.18

17. (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
Total - -

17.(c) Share Premium
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - -
Increase due to issue of shares at premium - -
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares - -

Transaction costs on issue of shares - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - -
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17. (d) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 32,013,768 13,324,615
Additions 23,836,992 18,689,153
Utilizations - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 55,850,760 32,013,768

17. (e) Retained Earnings
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Net Profit or Loss

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to/ from reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Cash Flow Hedge Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Transfer on Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment
Transfer on Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

Others (to be Specified)

201,363,264
236,726,427

(23,836,992)

(120,585,004)

115,999,368
182,031,207

(18,689,153)

(81,503,416)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

293,667,695

197,838,007

17. (f) Other Equity
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Cash Flow Hedge Reserves

Other Reserves

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

57,761

203,191,551

57,761

82,606,547

Total

203,249,312

82,664,308




18. Provisions
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave Encashment

ii) Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity)

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations (to be Specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others

7,877,040
268,070

5,020,155
5,775,636

Total

8,145,110

10,795,791

(a) Additional Disclosure of Provisions

Utilised
During
the Year

Opening Additions

Description Balance During the Year

Reversed
During the
Year

Unwinding Closing
of Discount Balance

Provision for tax
related legal cases
Provision for
non-tax legal cases

b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave Encashment

ii) Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity)

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations (to be Specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others

469,885

220,315

Total

469,885

220,315

19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Policy liabilities and provisions
Bonus Liability

Unallocated Surplus

Provision for unearned premiums
Premium deficiency reserve
Outstanding Claim Reserve

Fair Value Reserves

Cash Flow Hedge Reserves
Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity Method

1,496,029,266
403,468,323

21,283,568

Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for -

using the Equity Method
Others (to be Specified)

477,291,949
234,876,919

3,301,830

Total

1,920,781,156

715,470,698
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i) Notes on the cash-flows considered for LAT .
Gross Premium Method has been used in calculation of Mathematical Reserve as prescribed in
Valuation Directive for Life Insurers, 2077. The present value of all cash flows of Benefits, Premium,
Commissions, Expenses & Reinsurance, under each policy contract have been projected as on date of
valuation.
All the product related benefits (Death Benefit, Survival Benefit, Surrender Benefit & Maturity Benefit)
cash flows have been projected as per product specifications.
For participating policies bonuses, once declared, form a part of guaranteed benefits under the policy and
have been considered accordingly in policy liability calculation. The future bonus payable in the policy have been
considered in line with expected performance, previous profit allocation rates and policyholders’ reasonable
expectations.
Premium receivables under each policy is assumed to be paid on their respective due dates.
The commissions payable to agents have been projected as per the Beema Samiti guidelines.
The maintenance expenses have been separated as per policy and percentage of premium expense.
The per policy expense has been increased in future years for inflation.
Reinsurance cash-flows have been considered in calculation of Mathematical Reserves. Recovery from
reinsurers on expected claims have been considered as inflows and reinsurance premium has been
considered as outflows in calculation of Mathematical Reserves.

ii) Notes on valuation methods and assumptions
Gross Premium Method has been used in calculation of Mathematical Reserves for all individual life
insurance policies as prescribed in Valuation Directive for Life Insurers, 2077.
For group plans, a reserve equal to the higher of Unexpired Risks and the Unearned Premium Reserve
was held on a 1/365th methodology.
For all riders attached to base plans, a reserve was held equal to the Unearned Premium Reserve
on a 1/365th methodology except for long term riders, where the reserve is based on Gross Premium
Valuation.
The assumptions used are as under:
Mortality Rates: 100% of Nepal Assured Lives Mortality, 2009
Interest Rate: 6% per annum
Commission: Scales of commission / remuneration payable to agents’ / insurance intermediaries as per
the Annexure 11 of the Insurance Regulation 2049
Maintenance Expenses
e For Participating Policies: 905 per policy & 3.92% of premium.
* For Non-Participating Policies: 411 per policy & 3.56% of premium
Inflation: 4.9% per annum
Future Bonus: The estimated future bonus rates are in line with the expected performance, the previous
profit allocation rates, the policyholders' reasonable expectations and Beema Samiti’s guideline.

iii) Notes on the discounting policy
All the future cash flows have been discounted to arrive at the present value of all the cash-flow
components under each of the insurance contracts. As per Valuation Directive for Life Insurers 2077,
valuation rates of interest shall be the minimum of 6% and actual yield on life fund. Therefore, the
discount rate of 6% per annum has been used and seems quite prudent compared to actual return
earned by the Company.

iv) Notes on aggregation practices
Following aggregation practice has been followed:

i. Mathematical Reserve has been determined separately for each contract and the result was then
aggregated on the basis of policy type Endowment plan, Endowment cum Whole Life plan,Money
Back Plan, Term Plan & Foreign Employment.

ii. A reserve equal to one year’s extra premium has been held for sub-standard lives or occupation.
iii. An additional provision for IBNR, Expense Overruns and Future Bonus has been held.
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19 a) Gross Insurance Contract Liability

Line of Business

Particulars - Endowment Foreign . Others Transfer Total
Endowment Anticipated Cum Whole Whole Employment Other Special (to be from
Endowment . Life Term Term e
Life Term specified) Reserves
As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Policy liabilities and provisions 286,325,739 72,043,316 99,219,888 - 10,728,320 8,974,685 - - - 477,291,949
Bonus Liability 126,190,038 42,739,649 65,947,232 - - - - - - 234,876,919

Unallocated Surplus - - - - - - - - - -
Provision for unearned premiums - - - - - - - - - -
Premium deficiency reserve - - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding Claim Reserve 1,833,585 530,157 855,226 - - 82,862 - - - 3,301,830
Fair Value Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Actuarial Reserves - - - - - - - - R -
Revaluation Reserves - - - - - - - - - -

Fair Value Gain on Investment - - - - - - - - - -
Properties

Share of Profit of Associates - - - - - - - - - -
accounted as per Equity Method

Share of Other Comprehensive - - - - - - - - - -
Income of Associates accounted

for using the Equity Method

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - - - -
Total Balance As at Shrawan 1,2076 414,349,362 115,313,123 166,022,346 - 10,728,320 9,057,547 - - - 715,470,698
Changes during the year

Policy liabilities and provisions 653,342,297 155,227,076 147,811,685 - 13,214,131 49,142,128 - - - 1,018,737,317
Bonus Liability 111,283,358 35,454,877 21,853,169 - - - - - - 168,591,404

Unallocated Surplus - - - - - - - - - -
Provision for unearned premiums - - - - - - - - - -
Premium deficiency reserve - - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding Claim Reserve 7,769,876 6,261,732 531,343 - 137,000 3,281,786 - - - 17,981,737
Fair Value Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Actuarial Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation Reserves - - - - - - - - - -

Fair Value Gain on Investment - - - - - - - - - -
Properties

Share of Profit of Associates - - - - - - - - - -
accounted as per Equity Method

Share of Other Comprehensive - - - - - - - - - -
Income of Associates accounted

for using the Equity Method

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - - - -

Total changes during the year 772,395,531 196,943,685 170,196,196 - 13,351,131 52,423,915 - - - 1,205,310,458
As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Policy liabilities and provisions 939,668,036 227,270,392 247,031,573 - 23,942,451 58,116,813 - - - 1,496,029,266
Bonus Liability 237,473,396 78,194,526 87,800,401 - - - - - - 403,468,323

Unallocated Surplus - - - - - - - - - -

Provision for unearned pre- - - - - - - - - - -
miums

Premium deficiency reserve - - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding Claim Reserve 9,603,461 6,791,889 1,386,568 - 137,000 3,364,649 - - - 21,283,568
Fair Value Reserves - - - - - - . - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Actuarial Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation Reserves - - - - - - - - - -

Fair Value Gain on Investment - - - - - - - - - -
Properties

Share of Profit of Associates - - - - - - - - - -
accounted as per Equity Method

Share of Other Comprehensive - - - - - - - - - -
Income of Associates accounted

for using the Equity Method

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - - - -

Total Balance As at Ashadh 31,2077 1,186,744,893 312,256,808 336,218,542 - 24,079,451 61,481,462 - - - 1,920,781,156
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20. Insurance Payables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurers 54,548,653 17,932,493
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 3,495,306 -
Others (to be Specified) - -

Total 58,043,959 17,932,493

Payable within 12 months:
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers 54,548,653 17,932,493
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 3,495,306 -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 58,043,959 17,932,493

21. Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Assets

115,784,040

71,299,066

Total

(115,784,040)

(71,299,066)

22. Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months:
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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23. Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agents 151,798,111 86,960,621
Refundable Share Application Money - -
Sundry Creditors 18,693,110 6,337,093
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 707,965 1,151,914
ii) Bonus Payables 24,657,150 23,511,110
iii) Other employee benefit payables : - -
-Dashain Allowance Payable 33,920 33,920
-Fuel Reimbursement Payable 1,129,269 45,624
-Staff Incentive Payable 6,444,710 3,057,607
-Providend Fund Payable 78,345 114,781
Audit Fees Payable 841,875 731,125
Dividend Payable - -
Others : - -
-Rent Expense Payable 12,923,141 10,354,817
-Agent License Fee Payable 299,830 311,045
-Branch Operational Reimbursements Payable to Staff 1,935,743 27,678
-Staff Medical Claim Payable 30,849 -
-Staff Policy Premium Receivable (262) 3,492
Total 219,573,757 132,640,827

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agents 151,798,111 86,960,621
Refundable Share Application Money - -
Sundry Creditors 18,693,110 -
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 707,965 1,151,914
ii) Bonus Payables 24,657,150 23,511,110
iii) Other employee benefit payables : 7,686,244 3,251,931
Audit Fees Payable 841,875 731,125
Dividend Payable - -
Others : 15,189,301 10,697,033
Total 219,573,757 126,303,735




24. Other Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 42,159,348 8,775,896
VAT Payable 179,431 84,087
Unidentified Premiums - -
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,893,646 10,175,882
Lease Liability - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others (Rider Claims Payable) 2,966,027 -
Total 64,198,452 19,035,865

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 42,159,348 8,775,896
VAT Payable 179,431 84,087
Unidentified Premiums - -
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,893,646 10,175,882
Lease Liability - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others (Rider Claims Payable) 1,151,057 -
Total 62,383,482 19,035,865
25. Gross Earned Premiums Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Direct Premiums
Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted
Gross Change in Unearned Premiums

1,889,364,663

1,017,588,049

Total

1,889,364,663

1,017,588,049
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Portfolio-wise details of Gross Earned Premium

Direct Premiums

Premiums on

Gross Change in

Reinsurance Accepted Unearned Premiums

Fig. in NPR

Gross Earned Premiums

Particulars
Current Year Previous Current Previous Current  Previous Current Year Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year

Endowment 1,173,705,702 568,233,167 - - - - 1,173,705,702 568,233,167
Anticipated Endowment 326,295,262 179,820,792 - - - - 326,295,262 179,820,792
Endowment Cum Whole 281,379,320 248,524,725 - - - - 281,379,320 248,524,725
Life

Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 23,709,310 11,812,896 - - - - 23,709,310 11,812,896
Other Term 84,275,068 9,196,469 - - - - 84,275,068 9,196,469
Special Term - - - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - -
Total 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049 - - - - 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049
Detail of Gross Earned Premium

First Year Premium Renewal Premium Single Premium Total Gross Earned Premium
Noa T Oyt Premus Gt Povets curentvear "o

Endowment 449,706,005 334,259,383 327,794,531 88,618,599 396,205,166 145,355,185  1,173,705,702 568,233,167
Anticipated Endowment 186,363,472 151,051,836 127,136,974 28,768,956 12,794,816 - 326,295,262 179,820,792
Endowment Cum Whole Life 108,146,140 207,420,086 173,233,180 41,104,639 - - 281,379,320 248,524,725
Whole Life - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 23,709,310 11,812,896 - - - - 23,709,310 11,812,896
Other Term 78,172,739 8,942,717 6,102,330 253,752 - 84,275,068 9,196,469
Special Term - - - - - -

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -

Total 846,097,666 713,486,918 634,267,015 158,745,946 408,999,982 145,355,185 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049

26. Premiums Ceded

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers 77,976,276 31,395,223
Reinsurer's Share of Change in Unearned Premiums - -
Total 77,976,276 31,395,223

Portfolio-wise detail of Premium Ceded to Reinsurers

Reinsurer's Share of

Premilfm Ceded To Change in Unearned Premiums Ceded
Particulars Reinsurers Premiums
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 28,759,813 13,769,639 - - 28,759,813 13,769,639
Anticipated Endowment 13,000,242 6,045,827 - - 13,000,242 6,045,827
Endowment Cum Whole Life 13,310,082 8,735,408 - - 13,310,082 8,735,408
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 3,319,304 - - - 3,319,304 -
Other Term 19,586,835 2,844,349 - - 19,586,835 2,844,349
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 77,976,276 31,395,223 - - 77,976,276 31,395,223
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27. Net Earned Premiums

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Gross Earned Premiums 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049
Premiums Ceded (77,976,276) (31,395,223)
Total 1,811,388,386 986,192,826

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premiums Ceded Net Earned Premiums
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Cx:'nt Prs;l;orus Current Year Prs;liaorus

Endowment 1,173,705,702 568,233,167 28,759,813 13,769,639 1,144,945,889 554,463,528
Anticipated Endowment 326,295,262 179,820,792 13,000,242 6,045,827 313,295,020 173,774,965
Endowment Cum Whole Life 281,379,320 248,524,725 13,310,082 8,735,408 268,069,238 239,789,317
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 23,709,310 11,812,896 3,319,304 - 20,390,007 11,812,896
Other Term 84,275,068 9,196,469 19,586,835 2,844,349 64,688,233 6,352,119
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -

Total 1,889,364,663 1,017,588,049 77,976,276 31,395,223 1,811,388,386 986,192,826

28. Commission Income
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Reinsurance Commission Income - -

Profit Commission - -
Late Fees - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Income

Reinsurance . . Others -
e Profit Commission Late Fees ie Commission Income
. Commission Income (to be specified)
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment - - - -

Anticipated Endowment - - - - - - - -
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Whole Life - - - - - - - -

Foreign Employment - - - - - - R -
Term

Other Term - - - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - - - - R -

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - - R -

Total - - - - - - - - - -
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29. Investment Income

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs

i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 158,897,807 191,666,391
i) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank 4,750,001 1,158,219
iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions 73,984,518 30,457,869
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Instituions 19,550,002 5,931,726
v) Debentures 36,668,436 331,290

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 1,944,552 1,175,046

ix) Policyholder Loans 9,588,487 39,447
x) Agent Loans 3,598,212 1,429,411
xi) Employee Loans 2,216,413 74,590

xii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures - -
ii) Dividend Income - -
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTPL

i) Dividend Income - -
ii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Rental Income - -
Others (to be specified)

Total 311,198,428 232,263,991

30. Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments - -
ii) Mutual Fund - -
iii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties - -
Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges - -
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges - -
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges - -
Others (to be Specified) - -

Total - -

31. Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets - -
Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments - -
i) Mutual Fund - -
iif) Others (to be specified) - -

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at - -
Amortised Costs

i) Debentures - -
ii) Bonds - -
iii) Others (to be specified) - -

Total - -
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32. Other Income
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Costs - -
i) Employee Loans - -
i) Bonds - -
iii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Foreign Exchange Income - -
Interest Income from Finance Lease - -
Amortization of Deferred Income - -
Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Amortization of Deferred Income - -
Stamp Income - -

Others

Income from FE Pool-Management 2,565,929 -
Other Income 63,778 95,601
Premium Late Fees 2,544,251 487,835
Policy Cancellation & Other Charges 851,038 -
Total 6,024,997 583,436

33. Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 20,444,647 5,768,707
Total 20,444,647 5,768,707

34. Claims Ceded

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Claims Ceded to Reinsurers 10,606,584 4,203,199
Total 10,606,584 4,203,199

Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Benefits and Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Gross Benefits and Net Claims Paid

Claims Paid Claims Ceded before Ch_ang_jt:: .in
Particulars Contract Liabilities

Current Previous Current  Previous Current Previous

Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 7,384,942 1,652,206 4,156,152 1,200,000 3,228,790 452,206
Anticipated Endowment 118,597 1,500,000 - 1,400,000 118,597 100,000
Endowment Cum Whole Life 4,616,680 1,200,000 3,225,000 840,000 1,391,680 360,000
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 1,998,583 190,104 134,107 - 1,864,476 190,104
Other Term 6,325,846 1,226,397 3,091,325 763,199 3,234,521 463,199
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 20,444,647 5,768,707 10,606,584 4,203,199 9,838,063 1,565,509
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Details of Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Current Year

Fig.in NPR
Particulars Dea_th Matqrity MPaatLtriiatly Sl\j;:la:ger Otr_ler Gro_ss Claim Ne_t
Claim Claim Claim Claim Claims Claim Ceded Claim
Endowment 4,505,535 - - 588,799 2,290,608 7,384,942 4,156,152 3,228,790
Anticipated Endowment 103,333 - - 14,014 1,250 118,597 - 118,597
Endowment Cum Whole Life 1,575,300 - - 341,380 2,700,000 4,616,680 3,225,000 1,391,680
Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - - - 1,998,583 1,998,583 134,107 1,864,476
Other Term 5,007,262 - - - 1,318,584 6,325,846 3,091,325 3,234,521
Special Term - - - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - -
Total 11,191,429 - - 944,193 8,309,025 20,444,647 10,606,584 9,838,063
Previous Year
Particulars Dea_th Mattfrity M':Lt:iat; Surrendt_er 0tl_1er Gro_ss Claim Ne_t
Claim Claim Claim Value Claim Claims Claim Ceded Claim
Endowment 1,514,706 - - - 137,500 1,652,206 1,200,000 452,206
Anticipated Endowment 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 1,400,000 100,000
Endowment Cum Whole Life 1,100,000 - - - 100,000 1,200,000 840,000 360,000
Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - - - 190,104 190,104 - 190,104
Other Term 1,196,000 - - - 30,397 1,226,397 763,199 463,199
Special Term - - - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - -
Total 5,310,706 - - - 458,001 5,768,707 4,203,199 1,565,509

R0 | 3RMfd ATSW ot grrcer 006/90




35. Change in Contract Liabilities

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(@) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Policy liabilities and provisions 1,018,737,317 415,396,253
Bonus Liability 168,591,404 163,443,377
Unallocated Surplus - (19,790,158)
Premium deficiency reserve - -
Outstanding Claim reserve 17,981,737 3,301,830
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 1,205,310,458 562,351,303
(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets
Policy liabilities and provisions - -
Premium deficiency reserve - -
Outstanding Claim reserve 12,030,461 1,735,258
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total Change in Reinsurance Assets 12,030,461 1,735,258
Net Change in Contract Liabilities 1,193,279,996 560,616,044

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Contract Change in Reinsurance Net Change in Contract

Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Particulars .
Current Year Previous Current Previous Current Year Previous
Year Year Year Year

Endowment 772,395,531 323,876,012 4,401,651 889,274 767,993,879 322,986,738
Anticipated Endowment 196,943,685 91,386,651 5,788,453 298,951 191,155,232 91,087,700
Endowment Cum Whole Life 170,196,196 128,068,363 291,050 508,495 169,905,146 127,559,868
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment 13,351,131 10,728,320 - - 13,351,131 10,728,320
Term

Other Term 52,423,915 8,291,957 1,549,307 38,539 50,874,608 8,253,418
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 1,205,310,458 562,351,303 12,030,461 1,735,258 1,193,279,996 560,616,044

36. Commission Expenses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Commission Expenses on Insurance Contracts 299,499,547 200,950,344
Others (To be specified) - -
Total 299,499,547 200,950,344
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Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses

Commission Expenses on

Insurance Contracts Others Commission Expenses
Particulars -
Current Year Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 170,215,567 101,057,794 - - 170,215,567 101,057,794
Anticipated Endowment 69,005,700 43,094,474 - - 69,005,700 43,094,474
Endowment Cum Whole Life 52,773,425 56,272,165 - - 52,773,425 56,272,165
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - - - - -
Other Term 7,504,855 525,911 - - 7,504,855 525,911
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 299,499,547 200,950,344 - - 299,499,547 200,950,344
Details of Commission Expenses
Commision Expense on Commission Expense Commission Expense Total
First Year Premium on Single Premium on Renewal Premium
Particulars Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 104,014,391 77,894,958 21,078,031 8,573,245 45,123,145 14,589,591 170,215,567 101,057,794
Anticipated Endowment 45,245,196 37,195,905 857,427 22,903,077 5,898,570 69,005,700 43,094,474
Endowment Cum Whole Life 26,251,897 48,997,691 26,521,528 7,274,474 52,773,425 56,272,165
Whole Life -
Foreign Employment Term - -
Other Term 7,402,381 514,608 102,474 11,304 7,504,855 525,911
Special Term N
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 182,913,865 164,603,161 21,935,458 8,573,245 94,650,224 27,773,938 299,499,547 200,950,344
37. Service Fees
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross Service Fees 18,893,647 10,175,880
Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees (779,763) (313,952)
Total 18,113,884 9,861,928
Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees
Service Fees Reinsurer's g:easre of Service Net Service Fees
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous Year Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 11,737,057 5,682,332 287,598 137,696 11,449,459 5,544,635
Anticipated Endowment 3,262,953 1,798,208 130,002 60,458 3,132,950 1,737,750
Endowment Cum Whole Life 2,813,793 2,485,247 133,101 87,354 2,680,692 2,397,893
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 237,093 118,129 33,193 - 203,900 118,129
Other Term 842,751 91,965 195,868 28,443 646,882 63,521
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 18,893,647 10,175,880 779,763 313,952 18,113,884 9,861,928
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38. Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 68,442,703 50,361,982
Allowances 61,347,951 37,149,344
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity 5,708,509 4,189,269
i) Others (to be Specified) - -
Defined Contribution Plans

i) Provident Fund 6,851,392 5,042,064
ii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Leave Encashment 6,148,339 5,656,632
Termination Benefits - -
Festival Allowances 8,532,954 5,311,903
Training Expenses 3,623,185 6,370,057
Uniform Expenses - -
Medical Expenses - -
Staff Insurance Expenses 1,467,243 1,211,368
Staff Welfare - -
Bonus 12,904,603 11,169,754
Others :

Performance Incentives 8,778,565 5,404,470
Staff Refreshments 1,777,328 1,065,503
Staff Overtime Allowance 97,350 -
Prepaid Staff Loan 1,303,383 62,669
Total 186,983,506 132,995,015

39. Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note. 5) 12,204,702 9,113,318
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) - -
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 442,189 173,231
Total 12,646,891 9,286,549

40. Impairment Losses
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment

Properties and Intangible Assets
i) Property, Plant and Equipment
i) Investment Properties

iii) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

i) Investments

ii) Loans

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents
v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables
iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

3,418,306
(474,500)

1,149,500

Total

2,943,806

1,149,500
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41. Other Expenses
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rent Expenses 33,832,382 28,622,282
Electricity and Water 2,569,091 2,354,040
Repair & Maintenance

i) Buildings - -
i) Vehicles 7,091 14,924
iii) Office Equipments 15,368 9,003
iv) Others (Furniture/Fixtures, Computer Accessories, Leasehold 744,979 73,339
Properties and Software)

Telephone & Communication 11,128,413 9,194,421
Printing & Stationary 9,136,424 6,674,810
Office Consumable Expenses 1,625,312 2,191,481
Conveyance Expenses 4,474,110 4,132,672
Travelling Expenses

i) Domestic 3,235,111 4,946,499
i) Foreign 129,187 822,137
Agent Training 420,397 3,725,276
Other Agent Expenses 171,460,635 94,608,728
Insurance Premium 208,184 182,570
Security Expenses 840,720 840,720
Legal and Consulting Expenses 209,009 157,838
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 45,433 60,615
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 11,677,830 15,947,321
Business Promotion 1,374,006 625,830
Guest Entertainment 207,887 53,909
Gift and Donations 750,000 35,000
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 875,000 227,000
ii) Other Allowances 5,424 -
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 458,000 336,000
ii) Other Allowances - -
Annual General Meeting Expenses 113,601 -
Audit Related Expenses

i) Statutory Audit 232,680 377,600
i) Tax Audit 56,500 56,500
iii) Long Form Audit Report 56,500 -
iv) Other Fees - -
v) Internal Audit 588,357 400,528
vi) Others

Bank Charges 176,381 115,197
Fee and Charges 88,000 56,650
Postage Charges 1,363,801 1,652,398
Others :

Service and Consultancy Fees 2,716,226 1,849,657
Policy Stamp Charges 575,039 315,680
Vehicle and Other Rent 2,813,636 3,141,702
Other Operational Expenses 18,291,287 9,834,873
Registration & Membership Expenses 224,300 -
Foreign Employment Insurance Pool Expenses 1,093,484 582,525
Fine & Penalty - -
Policy Medical Expenses 3,551,979 2,420,534
Actuarial Valuation Expenses 1,143,349 2,030,584
Total 288,515,112 198,670,845
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42. Finance Cost
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Bonds

Interest Expenses - Debentures

Interest Expenses - Term Loans 649,582 3,416,728
Interest Expenses - Leases - -
Interest expenses - Overdraft Loans - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 649,582 3,416,728

43. Income Tax Expense
(a) Income Tax Expense

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences
ii) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others (to be Specified)

(120,585,004)

(81,503,416)

Income Tax Expense

(120,585,004)

(81,503,416)

(b). Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 116,141,423 100,527,791
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 29,035,356 25,131,948
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

i) Depreciation as per books 3,161,723 2,321,637
ii) Provision for Leave 1,288,095 662,200
iii) Net Benefits and Claims Paid 300,779,515 140,545,388
iv) Provision for Gratuity - 961,595
v) Donations - 8,750
vi) Other Provisions 735,952 8,583
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

i) Depreciation as per Act (3,379,749) (2,770,963)
ii) Net Earned Premium (452,847,097) (244,687,347)
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

i) - -
ii) - -
Add/ (Less): Others (to be Specified)

i) Add : Adjustment for Profit as per NFRS and GAAP 253,943 263,250

i)

Income Tax Expense

Effective Tax Rate

Note : Zero Income tax expense is due to negative assessable Income (i.e Taxable Loss)
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44 Employee Retirement Benefits
a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
33,06,820.00 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee Benefit Any Other Funded

. Plan Liability
Particulars : :
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current service cost 3,375,034 2,159,188 - -
Past service cost - - - -
Net interest cost (a-b) 311,687 118,660 - -

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 311,687 118,660 - -
b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit 3,686,721 2,277,848 - -
or Loss

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

) Liability
Particulars . .
Current  Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption 856,083 - -
changes in DBO (2,723,813)
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO 2,343,912 459,494 - -
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount - - - -
rate
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI (379,901) 1,315,577 - -

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

. Liability
Particulars . .
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 3,686,721 2,277,848 - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI (379,901) 1,315,577 - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 3,306,820 3,593,425 - -
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f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

Particul Liability
articulars Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the 5,020,155 1,539,761 - -
year

Service cost 3,375,034 2,159,188 - -
Interest cost 311,687 118,660 - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (449,935) (113,031) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (2,723,813) 856,083 - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience 2,343,912 459,494 - -
Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 7,877,040 5,020,155 - -

g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets
Any Other Funded
Liability
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Employee Benefit Plan

Particulars

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - - -
Interest Income - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Participant contributions - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -

Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End - - - -

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

Particulars Liability
icu
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 7,877,040 5,020,155 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of 7,877,040 5,020,155 - -

Financial Position

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Employee Benefit Plan  Any Other Funded

. Liability
Particulars ; .
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Expected company contributions for the next year
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j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year  Previous Current Year  Previous Year
Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 5,020,155 1,539,761 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit 3,686,721 2,277,848 - -

or Loss

Total remeasurements included in OCI (379,901) 1,315,577 - -
Acquisition/ divestment (449,935) (113,031) - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 7,877,040 5,020,155 - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

. Liability
Particulars . .
Current Previous Current  Previous
Year Year Year Year
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period - - - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI (379,901) 1,315,577 - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss (379,901) 1,315,577 - -
[) Current/Non - Current Liability
. Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars . .
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 469,885 220,315 - -
Non - Current Liability 7,407,155 4,799,840 - -
Total 7,877,040 5,020,155 - -
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
. Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars . -

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 467,000 220,000 - -
Between 1-2 years 947,000 446,000 - -
Between 2-5 years 2,466,000 1,161,000 - -
From 6 to 10 3,169,000 1,465,000 - -
Total 7,049,000 3,292,000 - -

n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded

Liability
. Current Previous Current Previous
Particulars
Year Year Year Year
(% Invested) (% (% (%

Invested) Invested) Invested)
Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -

Total - - - -
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0) Sensitivity Analysis

Employee Benefit Any Other Funded
Plan Liability

Particulars - ;
Current Previous Current Previous

Year Year Year Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase 7,080,076 4,423,449 - -
in Discount Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% 8,822,925 5,742,538 - -
Decrease in Discount Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in 8,795,459 5,707,698 - -
Salary Escalation Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decreasein 7,090,045 4,439,977 - -
Salary Escalation Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase - - - -
in Attrition Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% - - - -
Decrease in Attrition Rate

p) Assumptions

Particulars Benctit Plan . Liabilty
Discount Rate 9.00% -
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 8.00% -
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 5.00% -
Mortality Rate During Employment NALM 2009 -

45. Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a)Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting and

d) Claims Handling

e) Reinsurance

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Life Insurance contracts:
- Endowment
- Anticipated Endowment
- Endowment Cum Whole
- Foreign Employment Term
- Other Term
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The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
andgeographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of
claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to
reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected .

c) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of
the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:
i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.
ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.
i) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to
evaluate risk prior to acceptance.
iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.
v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the
adequacy of these covers.

d) Claims handling:
The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
i) Mortality Risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected
i) Longevity Risk — risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected
iii) Investment Return Risk — risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected
iv) Expense Risk — risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected
v) Policyholder Decision Risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and
surrenders) being different than expected

Assumptions
The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company are listed below:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Mortality  Investment Lapse and Discount Mortality Investment Lapse and Discount
Rates Return Surrender Rate Rate Rates Return Surrender rate Rate
Life Insurance 100% 6% As per company's 6% 100% 6% As per company's 6%
experience experience
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Sensitivities
The life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.
The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit
after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims
liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed
on an individual basis.

Current Year Previous Year
) Changesin Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
Particulars Assumptions (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
on Gross on Net - Profit - Profit on Gross on Net - Profit - Profit
Liabilities Liabilities Before Tax After Tax Liabilities Liabilities  Before Tax After Tax
Mortality Rate +50% (10,160,327) (9,906,590) 1,100,732 825,549 (5,415,948) (5,303,863) 589,318 441,989
Longevity +10% 17,852,325 17,406,492 (1,934,055) (1,450,541) 4,604,049 4,508,767 (500,974) (375,731)
Investment Return +1% (361,919,603)  (352,881,254) 39,209,028 29,406,771 (75,065,328) (73,511,827) 8,167,981 6,125,986
Expense +10% 107,478,948 104,794,838 (11,643,871) (8,732,903) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Lapse and +10% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Surrender Rate
Discount Rate +1% (361,919,603)  (352,881,254) 39,209,028 29,406,771 (75,065,328) (73,511,827) 8,167,981 6,125,986
Mortality Rate -50% 17,852,325 17,406,492 (1,934,055) (1,450,541) 4,604,049 4,508,767 (500,974) (375,731)
Longevity -10% (10,160,327) (9,906,590) 1,100,732 825,549 (5,415,948) (5,303,863) 589,318 441,989
Investment Return -1% 669,053,654 652,345,136 (72,482,793)  (54,362,095) 233,085,169 228,261,395 (25,362,377) (19,021,783)
Expense -10% (107,478,948) (104,794,838) 11,643,871 8,732,903 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Lapse and -10% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Surrender Rate

Discount Rate -1% 669,053,654 652,345,136 (72,482,793)  (54,362,095) 233,085,169 228,261,395 25,362,377 19,021,783

e) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made
for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation
to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not
negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to each
reinsurer.

f) Reserving
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.
The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at
year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Endowment 1,186,744,893 5,290,925 1,181,453,968 414,349,362 889,274 413,460,089
Anticipated Endowment 312,256,808 6,087,404 306,169,404 115,313,123 298,951 115,014,172
Endowment Cum Whole Life 336,218,542 799,545 335,418,997 166,022,346 508,495 165,513,851
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 24,079,451 - 24,079,451 10,728,320 - 10,728,320
Other Term 61,481,462 1,587,846 59,893,616 9,057,547 38,539 9,019,008
Special Term - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - -
Total 1,920,781,156 13,765,720 1,907,015,436 715,470,698 1,735,258 713,735,440
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46 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial

Instruments that are

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Level - -
FVTPL Evocl Amortised FVTPL Fvocl Amortised
Cost Cost

Investments

i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1 42,138,871 - - - -

ii) Investment in Mutual Funds - - - - -

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and - - - - -

Financial Institutions

iv) Investment in Debentures 3 - - 540,390,000 - - 68,468,000

v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ - - - - -
Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - 2,677,000,000 - - 2,227,400,000
vii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 3 76,000,000 - 75,200,000 -
Loans 3 - 268,130,720 - - 19,203,882
Other Financial Assets 3 - 11,885,295 - - 4,905,299
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - - 318,289,771 - - 118,234,355
Total Financial Assets 42,138,871 76,000,000 3,815,695,786 - 75,200,000 2,438,211,536
Borrowings - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 219,573,757 - - 132,640,827
Total Financial Liabilities - - 219,573,757 - - 132,640,827

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are
held at least once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
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Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 540,390,000 540,390,000 68,468,000 68,468,000
i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal - - - -
Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit 2,677,000,000 2,677,000,000 2,227,400,000 2,227,400,000
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Loans
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees 36,118,836 26,629,343 607,645 4,407,935
iii) Loan to Agent 21,846,343 24,043,704 9,244,039 11,782,715
iv) Loan to Policyholders 217,457,673 217,457,673 3,013,232 3,013,232
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets 11,885,295 11,885,295 4,905,299 4,905,299
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 3,504,698,147 3,497,406,015 2,313,638,215 2,319,977,181
Borrowings
i) Bonds - - - -
ii) Debentures - - - -
iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdrafts - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 219,573,757 219,573,757 132,640,827 132,640,827
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 219,573,757 219,573,757 132,640,827 132,640,827

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows discounted using
current discount rate.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.

47. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit
risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported
to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the
risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy,
ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

¢) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
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Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying  probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
Loan to
Loss Employees 26,629,343 - - 26,629,343
Credit Risk has  allowance Loan to
not significantly measured at Agent 24,718,704 675,000 - 11,782,715
increased since 12 months
initial recognition expected !_oan to 217,457,673 - - 217,457,673
credit losses  Policyholders
Credit Risk has
significantly
increased Loss - - - - -
and not credit ~ allowance
impaired megsu_red
o at life-time
ereq[t Risk has expected
significantly credit losses ; ; ; ; -
increased and
credit impaired
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2076
Gross Expected Expected i?;g&:?
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
Credit Risk has Loss Loanto 4,407,935 - - -
not significantly allowance Employees
!nfirelased S'f!;?e ;geaSUf;d al  LoantoAgent 12,932,215 1,149,500 - 11,782,715
initial recognition months i i i
expected Loanto 3,013,232

credit losses

Policyholders

Credit Risk has Loss
significantly allowance
increased and not measured
credit impaired at life-time
Credit Risk has expected
significantly credit losses
increased and credit

impaired

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Measured at

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

. 12 months Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
Particulars L - L .
expected significantly increased significantly increased
credit losses  and not credit impaired and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 1,149,500 - -
2076

Changes in loss allowances 675,000 - -
Write-offs - - -
Recoveries 1,149,500 - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 675,000 - -
31, 2077
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Note:

1) Loans against life insurance policies are given to the extent of 90% of surrender value. Hence, any
outstanding prinicpal and interest receivable upto 100% of surrender value is secured. After that foreclosure
of the insurance policy is done.

ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events
there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and
expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on
their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars 1 Yearto 5 More than 5 More than 5
Upto 1 Year Year Year Upto 1 Year 1 Yearto 5 Year Year
Borrowings -
Other Financial 219,573,757 - - 132,640,827
Liabilities
Total Financial 219,573,757 - - 132,640,827 - -
Liabilities

ili) Market Risk
al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not
maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed
to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in
Nepali Rupee.

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Foreign Currency Risk)
Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Currency A. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly
probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the NPR
cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are
as follows:
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Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
USD Currency USD Currency
A A
Investments - - - -
Loans - - - -

Insurance Receivables - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - - -

Less: Derivative Assets - - - -
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign - - - -

Currency
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign - - - -
Currency
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ - - - -
(Assets)

Insurance Payables - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - - -
i) Acturial Fee 5,882 604,850 5,882 646,824
Less: Derivative Liabilities - - - -

i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign - - - -
Currency

i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign - - - -
Currency

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) 5,882 604,850 5,882 646,824

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign
forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

Impact on profit after Impact on other component
tax of equity
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year

Particulars
Previous Year

USD sensitivity

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * 60,485 64,682
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *

Currency A sensitivity

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% *

NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level
by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following
effect on the Profit After Tax.
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* 36,111 129,718
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* 36,111 129,718

*Holding all other Variable Constant

c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through
OCl.

c2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and
impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved
in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

*Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity
securities classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

48. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49. Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:
a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Insurance Board to attain a stipulated minimum
paid up capital of NPR 2 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital
is NPR 1.54 billion
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Dividend

Current Previous

Particulars
Year Year

(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 of NPR 0/- per fully paid share - -
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors have recommended 231,578,947 -
the payment of a final dividend of NPR 10.5263/- per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31,

2077 - NPR 231,578,947.37/-). Due to issue of Initial Public Offering after Ashadh 31,

2077, the dividend has been proposed for 22,000,000 units of paid equity shares. This

proposed dividend (i.e 10% Bonus Share and 0.5263% Cash Dividend (for Tax purpose

only) is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

231,578,947 -

50. Earnings Per Share
. Current Previous
Particulars

Year Year
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share 236,726,427 182,031,207
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds - -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 236,726,427 182,031,207
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year 15,400,000 15,400,000

For Basic Earning per Share

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares - -
ii) Options - -
iii) Convertible Bonds - -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for 15,400,000 15,400,000
Diluted Earning Per Share

Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share 15 12
Diluted Earnings Per Share 15 12

51. Operating Segment
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these
industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of
the view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not nec-
essary to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Endowment

ii) Anticipated Endowment

iii) Endowment Cum Whole Life

iv Whole Life

v) Foreign Employment Term

vi) Other Term

vii) Special Term

viii) Others (to be Specified)
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e) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit 30,681,882 (1,839,296)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (12,646,891) (9,286,549)
Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization - -
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures (50,493,668) (34,506,783)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 149,249,683 149,577,147
Less: Finance Cost (649,582) (3,416,728)
Profit Before Tax 116,141,423 100,527,791

f) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Assets

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates
Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Assets

Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

13,765,720
4,430,172
69,285,319
203,191,551

3,335,528,871
268,130,720
115,784,040
23,218,742
11,885,295
318,289,771

5,111,214
3,766,091
58,419,509
82,606,547

2,371,068,000
19,203,882
71,299,066
13,777,792
4,905,299
118,234,355

Total Assets

4,363,510,201

2,748,391,756

g) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Liabilities 1,978,825,115 733,403,191
Provisions 8,145,110 10,795,791
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Other Financial Liabilities 219,573,757 132,640,827
Other Liabilities 64,198,452 19,035,865
Total Liabilities 2,270,742,434 895,875,674
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52. Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company: N/A
Subsidiaries: N/A
Associates: N/A
Fellow Subsidiaries: N/A

Key Management Personnel:Remarks
1. Nanda Kishore Sharma - Chairman
2. Akash Golcha - Director
3. Sharmila Shrestha Maharjan - Director
4. Jayanta Kumar Agrawal - Director
5. Deepak Kumar Agrawal - Director Appointed on 23/08/2077 B.S
6. Prakash Bikram Khatri - Chief Executive Officer

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 7,474,877 5,393,400
Post-employment benefits 1,323,335 965,822
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total 8,798,213 6,359,222

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances

Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions

i) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance

ii) Accident Insurance

ii) Health Insurance (including family members)

6,424,857

1,330,915

4,830,400

Total

7,755,772

4,830,400
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(c) Related Party Transactions:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow Key Managerial

Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Commission Income

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Rental Income

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Interest Income

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

- 38,947 38,947

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Premium Paid

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Commission Expenses

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Dividend

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Meeting Fees

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

- 1,333,000 1,333,000
- 563,000 563,000

Allowances to Directors

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Others (to be specified)

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

Holding

Compan

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow Key Managerial Total
Subsidiaries Personnel

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Other Payables (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)
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53. Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee
(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 15 years for 2076 and 2077 .
Non-cancellable periods range from 1 month to 2 months. The leases are renewable by mutual
consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 33,832,382.45 (Ashadh 31, 2076/ July 16, 2019:
NPR 28,622,282.47).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year 31,006,532 27,531,109
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 165,249,100 147,271,629
i) Later than 5 years 111,239,558 140,106,336

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease
liability at the end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
i) Later than 5 years - -

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -

Less: Effect of Discounting - -

Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor
(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has not leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis as
the result of which there is no rental income in the year.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
i) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance
lease agreements fall due as follows:

Current Year Previous Year
P Unearned Unearned
Particulars Gross Finance Net Gross Finance Net
Investment Investment Investment Investment
Income Income

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than - - - - - -
5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - R

Total - - - - - -
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54. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Intangible Assets

Total

55. Contingent Liabilities

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for (net of

advances)

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax

b) Indirect Taxes

c) Others (to be Specified)

Total

56. Events occuring after Balance Sheet

57. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits

Property, plant and equipment
Others (to be Specified)

Total

58. Miscellaneous

(i) Al amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.

(i) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.

59. Others (to be Specified)
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Annexure Il
Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh31,2077)

A. Information related to Life Insurance
Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

1. Date of establishment : Jyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. is incorporated as a Public Limited Company
on Baishakh 24, 2074 (May 07,2017) under Company Act, 2053.

2. Insurer licence date : The company has obtained license on Asadh 20,2074 (July 04, 2017) under
section 10(3) of Insurance Act 2049 and Rule 8 (2) of Insurance Regulations,2049 in order to carry out
insurance business.

3. Insurance business type, nature : The company issues Life Insurance contracts.

4. Date of commencement of business : The date of commencement of business is Bhadra 19, 2074

(September 04, 2017)

B. Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters

1. Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business : License issued under
section 10(3) of Insurance Act 2049 and Rule 8 (2) of Insurance Regulations,2049 has validity till Chaitra
end 2077.

2. Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not : All
tax, service charge, fine and penalties are paid.

3. Share structure of the insurer, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation : Share
structure on the basis of ownership is as below.

As at 15 July, 2020

S.N Shareholder - -
No.of Equity Share %Of Ownership
1 Promoters
a Nepali Organized Institutions 2,850,000 18.51%
b Nepalese Citizen 12,550,000 81.49%
C Foreigner - -
Total 15,400,000 100%
2 General Public - -
3 Other - -
Total 15,400,000 100%

4. Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained or not : The Solvency ratio
is 2.102 and is maintained as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

5. a) Statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than
it's fair value : The financial amount of the assets contained in SOFP are stated as per their fair value
and thus not overstated.
b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements : The financial statements
have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of
financial position:
- Financial Instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
- Investment property is measured at fair value..
- Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past
service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

6. Declaration on investment made by insurer that are in line with prevailing laws. If not reason to be

disclosed : All the investment made by the company are in line with prevailing laws and as per Beema
Samiti's directive.
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7. Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle the
outstanding claim :Total number of claim settled within the year is 73. Total outstanding claim number is
46 and all the claims are estimated to be settled within fiscal year 2020/21.

8. Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049,
Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere
to and any non compliance with reasons thereof : All the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance
Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation has been adhered to
except provision regarding the Annual General Meeting.

9. Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted : The appropriate
accounting policy has been consistently adopted that provides reliable and relevant information about the
effects of transaction, events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance and
cash flows.

10. Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's Financial Position
and Financial Performance are presented true & fairly : Financial Statement is prepared truly and
fairly presented in accordance with the prescribed accounting standards.

11. Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision
to safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud,
embezzlement and irregularities : All appropriate provisions have been implemented.

12. Declaration that Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis :
Management do not intend nor have any necessity to liquidate company or cease company's operation
for foreseeable future. The Financial Statement have been prepared based on going concern basis.

13. Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of
the insurer's business : The internal control system is commensurate with size, nature & volume of the
company's business.

14. Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049,
Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and
insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest : No any transaction has
been conducted contrary to Insurance Act 2049, Companies Act 2063, related regulations and directives.

15. Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the particular financial year : None

16. Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management : None
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Annexure Il
Major Financial Indicator

Fiscal Year
S.N Particular Indicators
2073-074 2074-075 2075-076 2076-077

1 Net worth NRs. 1,549,661,561  1,670,484,876  1,852,516,082  2,092,767,767
2 Number of Shares Number 15,400,000 15,400,000 15,400,000 15,400,000
3 Book value per shares NRs. 100.63 108.47 120.29 135.89
4 Net Profit NRs. 9,661,561 120,823,316 182,031,207 236,726,427
5 Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 0.63 8 12 15
6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - - - -
7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. - - - -
8 Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio - - - -
9 Solvency Margin % - 107.7 183.3 210.20
10 Change in Equity % - 7.80 10.90 12.97
1 Return on Revenue % 69.01 25.06 14.93 11.12
12 Return on Equity % 0.62 7.23 9.83 11.31
13 Return on Investments % 0.63 714 7.68 710
14 Return on Assets % 0.62 6.38 6.62 5.43
15 Operating Expense Ratio Ratio 0.08 1.72 4.76 6.30
16 Net Insurance Premium/ Gross Insurance Premium % - 96.21 96.91 95.87
17 Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % - 42.39 17.89 12.53
18 Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets % - 15.04 37.02 43.30
19 Income from Investment & loan/ Total investment & loan amount % 0.92 11.74 9.72 8.64
20 Reinsurance Commission Income/ Gross Reinsurance Premium % - - - -
21 Management expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % - 44.58 33.84 25.87
22 Agent Related Expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % - 28.08 29.47 25.02
23 Number of Agents Numbers - 1764 7539 11247
24 Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers - 66 103 117
25 Employee expenses/ Management expenses % 2.44 52.39 38.62 38.25
26 Employee expenses/ Number of Employees Amount 13,650 485,927 515,485 577,110
27 Outstanding Claim/ Claim Paid % - - 57.24 104.10
28 Total Number of In Force Insurance Policies Numbers - 7,690 26,509 46,623
29 Gross Premium Growth Rate % - 100.00 257.03 85.67
30 Change in Gross Premium % - 100.00 257.03 85.67
31 Actuarial Provision Amount - 133,329,238 712,168,868 1,899,497,589
32 Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % - 9.17 38.62 91.78
33 Reinsurance Ratio % - 0.26 - -
34 Gross Premium Revenue/ Equity % - 18.51 66.08 122.69
35 Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % - 17.81 64.04 117.62
36 Insurance Debt/ Total Equity % - - - -
37 Liquidity Ratio (Current Ratio) Ratio 7.6:1 1.5:1 1.3:1 1.4:1
38 Affiliate Ratio Ratio - - - -
39 (Unquoted Equities + Debtors)/ Net Total Assets % - 2.24 4.06 3.63
40 Number of Renewed Policy/ Last Year's Total Number of In Force Policies % - - 60.04 64.05
4 Number of Intimated Claim/ Total Number of In Force Policy % - 0.01 0.14 0.25
42 Declared Bonus Rate % - 40-70 43-75 43-75
43 Interim Bonus Rate % - - 43-75 43-75
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BRANCH NETWORK

Region 1

Biratnagar - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Bhadrapur Sub Branch 9801238480 023-455575
Bhojpur Sub Branch 9801902659 029-420611
Biratchowk Sub Branch 9802322483 021-545385
Biratnagar Branch 9801238516 021-514655
Birtamode Branch 9801238420 023-531581
Damak Branch 9801238430 023-582804
Dhankuta Branch 9801238429 026-522548
Dharan Branch 9801238517 025-530666
Diktel Sub Branch 9801238336

llam Branch 9801238423 027-521728
Inaruwa Sub Branch 9801238557

Itahari Branch 9801238424 025-584415
Khandbari Sub Branch 9801902585

Okhaldhunga Branch 9869017677

Phidim Branch 9801238558 024-522421
Solu Sub Branch 9801238559

Taplejung Sub Branch 9801905953

Terhathum Sub Branch 9801902587 026-460399

Region 2

Janakpur - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Bardibas Branch 9802332015

Barhathawa Sub Branch 9802322872

Birgunj Branch 9801238408 051-521328
Chapur Branch 9802332920

Gaighat Branch 9802332931 035-422587
Gaur Sub Branch 9801238485 055-521192
Jaleshwor Sub Branch 9801238551

Janakpur Branch 9802332007 041-590338
Kalaiya Branch 9801238451 053-551255
Kanchanrup Sub Branch 9802321984

Katari Sub Branch 9802322893

Lahan Branch 9802332926 033-563822
Mirchaiya Sub Branch 9801238530

Pokhariya Sub Branch 9801238450 051-560142
Rajbiraj Branch 9801238295

JeetpurB Sub Branch 9802322995 053-412284
Lalbandi Sub Branch 9801238484 046-501569
Nijgadh Sub Branch 9801238445 053-540497
Sindhuli Branch 9802303455 047-521213

Q8% | FRNfd ATSW ot grdcer 008/90




Region 3

Kathmandu - Regional Office
Anamnagar Branch
Banepa Branch
Bhaisepati Branch
Chapagaun Branch
Charikot Branch
Chautara Sub Branch
Gongabu Branch
Gwarko Branch
Gyaneshwor Branch
Jorpati Branch
Khadichaur Sub Branch
Kirtipur Branch
Maharajgunj Branch
Manthali Branch
Newroad Branch
Panauti Branch
Pepsicola Branch
Pulchowk Branch
Sitapaila Branch
Sorakhutte Branch
Bhaktapur Branch
Dhading Branch
Battar Sub Branch
Satdobato Branch
Tinkune Branch
Rasuwa Sub Branch
Chababhil Branch
Ravi Bhawan Branch

Contact
9801904742
9802332986
9802322945
9802303459
9801238495
9802332961

9801238415
9801238416
9802303497
9801238309
9851220610
9801905947
9801238582
9802322492
9802303479
9802303458
9802322713
9802322946
9802332965
9802332972
9801238406
9802322871

9801238292
9801238518

9801904748

9801238296
9801238588
9802332962

Office Contact
01-5705074
01-1660122

049-421501
01-1620331
01-4985751

01-4545941
01-4911434
01-1482136
01-5908103
01-4017535
04-8540686
01-4264995
01-1441010

01-5409005
01-5315169
01-4387508
016-620445
01-0520635
01-0560132

01-4106895

01-4580175
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Region 4

Pokhara - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Baglung Branch 9801904743 068-521606
Beni Sub Branch 9802303456 069-522004
Damauli Branch 9801238432 065-562731
Gorkha Sub Branch 9801238294 064-421190
Khairenitar Sub Branch 9802303488 065-412188
Kushma Sub Branch 9802332992

Lekhnath Sub Branch 9801905259

Pokhara Branch 9801238496 061-550201
Waling Branch 9801238487 063-440747
Besisahar Sub Branch 9801238529 066-520496

Region 5

Butwal - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Bardaghat Branch 9801238444 078-580496
Bhairahawa Branch 9801238431 071-525033
Butwal Branch 9801238412 071-547786
Chandrauta Sub Branch 9801238412

Manigram Branch 9802332013 071-562392
Murgiya Sub Branch 9801238555 071-440138
Parasi Sub Branch 9801238554 078-520272
Rampur Sub Branch 9801238293 075-400502
Taulihawa Sub Branch 9801238304 076-560941
Arghakhanchi Branch 9801238526 077-420952
JeetpurK Sub Branch 9801238446 076-550147
Gulmi Branch 9801238552 079-520897
Palpa Branch 9801238520 075-522812
Simaltari Sub Branch 9802322996

Chanauli Sub Branch 9801238418

Daman Sub Branch 9802332968

Hetauda Branch 9801238442 057-524102
Tandi Branch 9801238299 056-562109
Chitwan Branch 9855011180 056-596407
Manahari Sub Branch 9802332009

Kawasoti Sub Branch 9802332991
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Region 6

Ghorahi - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Dailekh Branch 9801238531 089-410249
Jajarkot Sub Branch 9802322990
Jumla Branch 9802322865 087-520260
Kalikot Sub Branch 9802322997
Rukum Sub Branch
Salyan Branch 9802322892 088-400009
Surkhet Branch 9802322990 083-522547
Humla Branch 9802303487
Ghorahi Branch 9801238497 082-564050
Gulariya Sub Branch 9801238448 084-420692
Kohalpur Branch 9802303473 081-541195
Lamahi Branch 9802332010 082-540958
Nepalgunj Branch 9802303476
Pyuthan Sub Branch 9802332996 086-410144
Rajapur Sub Branch 9801238488 081-530286
Rolpa Sub Branch 9801238499 086-440380
Tulsipur Branch 9801238498 082-523434
Rukum Purba Sub Branch 9801238335

Region 7
Dhangadhi - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Attariya Sub Branch 9802303486
Darchula Sub Branch 9801904745 093-420490
Achham Sub Branch 9801902586 097-620132
Baitadi Sub Branch 9801904745 095-520521
Bajhang Branch 9801902589 092-421235
Bajura Sub Branch 9801902583 097-541329
Mahendranagar Branch 9801238494 099-523149
Punarbas Sub Branch 9801238482 099-420020
Sukhad Branch 9801238417 091-403157
Tikapur Sub Branch 9802322848 091-560629
Dadeldhura Branch 9801238519 096-420971
Dhangadhi Branch 9801902582 091-417253
Jogbuda Sub Branch 9802303467
Doti Branch 9802322715 094-412053
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Jyoti Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
Shanta Plaza, Gyaneshwor,

Kathmandu, Nepal | P.O Box 19433
® 01-4445947/50 Q info@jyotilife.com




